ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 6, 2004
1: 50 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lesil MGQiire, Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Anderson, Vice Chair
Representative Ji m Hol m

Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 549

"An Act relating to wunsolicited conmunications followng an
aircraft accident; and anmending Rule 503, Alaska Rules of
Evi dence. "

- MOVED CSHB 549(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 336
"An Act |imting recovery of civil danages by an uninsured
driver; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 438
"An Act relating to notorists noving over or slow ng down for
energency vehicles."

- MOVED CSHB 438(JUD) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 430

"An Act relating to enployees under 21 years of age in the
prem ses of hotels, restaurants, and eating places that are
licensed to sell, serve, del i ver, or dispense alcoholic
beverages. "

- MOVED HB 430 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2004



HOUSE BI LL NO. 275
"An Act relating to veterinarians and aninals."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 549

SHORT TI TLE: UNSOLI Cl TED COVMUNI CATI ON: Al RCRAFT CRASH
SPONSCR( S) : JUDI Cl ARY

03/ 29/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 29/ 04 (H JuD

04/ 05/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 05/ 04 (H -- Meeting Postponed to Tues. 4/6/04 --
04/ 06/ 04 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 336

SHORT TITLE: ClVIL DAMAGES FOR UNI NSURED DRI VERS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) MEYER

01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H JUuD

03/ 31/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 31/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

04/ 06/ 04 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 438

SHORT TITLE: MOVE OVER LAW FOR DRI VERS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) HOLM

02/ 05/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 04 (H) TRA, STA, JUD

02/ 17/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 17/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 24/ 04 (H TRA AT 1:30 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 24/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 24/ 04 (H) M NUTE( TRA)

02/ 26/ 04 (H TRA RPT 3DP 2NR

02/ 26/ 04 (H DP: OGG STEPOVI CH, HOLM NR: MASEK,
02/ 26/ 04 (H) KOHRI NG

03/ 09/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 09/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 438( STA) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 09/ 04 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 12/ 04 (H STA RPT CS(STA) 1DP 2NR 3AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- April 6, 2004



03/ 12/ 04 (H DP: LYNN, NR COGH LL, WEYHRAUCH,

03/ 12/ 04 (H) AM GRUENBERG, SEATON, HOLM

04/ 02/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 02/ 04 (H <Bill Hearing Postponed TO 4/5/ 04>

04/ 05/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 05/ 04 (H -- Meeting Postponed to Tues. 4/6/04 --
04/ 06/ 04 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 430
SHORT TI TLE: EMPLOYEES UNDER 21 AT LI CENSED PREM SES
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) KERTTULA

02/ 04/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 04/ 04 (H L&C, JUD

02/ 25/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 25/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 25/ 04 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 26/ 04 (H L&C RPT 5DP

02/ 26/ 04 (H DP: CRAWFCRD, LYNN, ROKEBERG
02/ 26/ 04 (H) GUTTENBERG, GATTO

03/ 31/ 04 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
03/ 31/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

04/ 06/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
BILL: HB 275

SHORT TI TLE: VETERI NARI ANS AND ANl MALS
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) CHENAULT

04/ 17/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 17/ 03 (H) L&C, RES

02/ 20/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

02/ 20/ 04 (H <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 29/ 04 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 29/ 04 (H) Moved CSHB 275(L&C) Qut of Committee
03/ 29/ 04 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 31/ 04 (H) RES REFERRAL WAl VED

04/ 01/ 04 (H) L& RPT CS(L&C) NT 3DP 2NR 1AM

04/ 01/ 04 (H) DP: CRAWFORD, LYNN, ANDERSON;

04/ 01/ 04 (H) NR. ROKEBERG DAHLSTROM AM GUTTENBERG
04/ 01/ 04 (H JUD REFERRAL ADDED AFTER L&C

04/ 01/ 04 (H) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD

04/ 05/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 05/ 04 (H -- Meeting Postponed to Tues. 4/6/04 --
04/ 06/ 04 (H) JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- April 6, 2004



VANESSA TONDI NI, Staff

to Representative Lesil MGuire

House Judiciary Standing Conmttee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 549 on behalf of the House
Judiciary Standing Commttee, sponsor.

MARCIA R DAVIS, Vice President and CGeneral Counse

Era Aviation, Inc.

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 549, providing background
i nformati on and answering questions.

TOM NI COLOCS, Ceneral Manager

Cape Snythe Air Service;

Vi ce President

Board of Directors

Al aska Air Carriers Association

Barrow, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Voi ced strong support for HB 549.

ART WARBELOW Pr esi dent

War below s Air Ventures, Inc.

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 549.

ED GREGOR (ph)

Al G Avi ation Insurance (ph)

(No address provi ded)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 549, echoing testinony of
M. N colos and M. Warbel ow and providing the perspective of an
i nsurance cl ai ns handl er.

PAUL LANDI S, Menber

Board of Directors

Al aska Air Carriers Association

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Urged support for HB 549 as witten.

MELI SSA FOUSE

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 549, saying it's absurd to
make this a felony and asking for consideration of those hurt or
killed in accidents.

ROBERT JACOBSEN, Presi dent

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2004



W ngs of Al aska
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 549.

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 336.

JOHN L. GEORGE, Lobbyi st
for Property Casualty Insurers Association of America
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 336.

DONNA J. McCREADY, Attorney at Law

Ashburn and Mason

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 336.

M CHAEL J. SCHNEI DER, Attorney at Law

Law O fices of Mchael J. Schneider, PC

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 336.

M CHAEL L. LESSMEIER, Attorney at Law
Lessneier & Wnters

Lobbyi st for State Farm I nsurance Conpany ("State Farni)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 336.

MATTHEW RUDI G, St af f

to Representative JimHolm

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded background information
HB 438 on behal f of Representative Holm sponsor.

ALLEN STOREY, Li eutenant

Central Ofice

D vision of Alaska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 438;
comments during discussion of HB 275.

SHELLEY OWENS, Heal th Program Manager
Community Health & Energency Medical Services

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- Apri |

r egar di ng

provi ded

6, 2004



D vision of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 438.

REPRESENTATI VE BETH KERTTULA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 430.

AURORA HAUKE, St aff

to Representative Beth Kerttula

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question relating to HB 430.

ELI SE HSI EH, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Envi ronnental Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Department of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Suggested changes to HB 275.

TI' M COLBATH, Founder

Al aska's Extended Life Animal Sanctuary

Ni ki ski, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 275.

CHRI STI NE HEI NTZ
Sterling, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 275.

BARBARA BRI NK, Director

Central Ofice

Publ i c Def ender Agency (PDA)

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Rel ayed the PDA's concerns during
di scussi on of HB 275.

SHARALYN WRI GHT, St aff

to Representative M ke Chenault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 275, provided a
cooment to the PDA on behalf of the sponsor, Representative
Chenaul t.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- April 6, 2004



ETHEL CHRI STENSEN, Executive Director

Al aska Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SPCA)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 275, offered her
belief that mandatory jail tinme should be inposed for heinous
crimes involving animal cruelty.

SALLY CLAMPI TT, President

Al aska Equi ne Rescue (AER)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 275.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-59, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LESIL MGJIRE called the House Judiciary Standing
Committee neeting to order at 1:50 p.m Represent ati ves
McCGuire, Holm Sanuels, and Gara were present at the call to
order. Representati ves Anderson, (Ogg, and G uenberg arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 549 - UNSCLI G TED COVMUNI CATI ON: Al RCRAFT CRASH

Number 0077

CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 549, "An Act relating to wunsolicited
communi cations followng an aircraft accident; and anmending Rule
503, Al aska Rul es of Evidence."

Nunber 0120

VANESSA TONDI NI, Staff to Representative Lesil MGQuire, House
Judi ci ary St andi ng Comm ttee, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
presented HB 549 on behalf of the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee, sponsor. Calling it is a good, straightforward,
"anti-anbul ance chaser bill" that regulates the conduct of
attorneys, M. Tondini said it mrrors what is currently done
under the Al aska Rules of Professional Conduct and federal |aw
It basically says an attorney cannot solicit business or contact
i ndi viduals for 45 days after an avi ati on acci dent.

Nunber 0201

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) for HB 549, Version 23-LS1860\D, Bull ock
4/ 1/ 04, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version D
was before the commttee.

M5. TONDINI explained that the original bill included a
reference to the attorney-client privilege. At such an early
stage of communication, however, there is no attorney-client
privilege in effect, so that reference was renoved in Version D
after review of the bill and discussions with other attorneys.

M5. TONDINI noted that while HB 549 is based on federal law, it
applies only to intrastate flights that take place entirely

wi t hin Al aska. It differs fromthe federal counterpart in that
a reference to the air carrier's attorney has been added to nake
it clear that all attorneys are to refrain from unsolicited

contact with injured passengers and their famlies during this
difficult time when they are vulnerable to external pressures
and may meke premature decisions. The bill only prevents
| awyers and their agents from initiating contact; a person may
call an attorney at any tinme. Thus Ms. Tondini opined that this
doesn't hinder a person's ability to get effective assistance or

counsel . Noting that people on teleconference could provide
greater detail, she offered to answer questions.

Number 0358

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that the intent seens fine of not
having an attorney seek these clients, but the bill as witten
seens to go beyond that. He expl ained two concerns. First, a
person mght want the attorney he/she hired to be able to
contact a witness - who may be an individual injured in the
accident - for confirmtion. Second, if a potential party may

not contact an individual injured in the accident, that neans
soneone may not speak about [a potential action] to the person
who was sitting in the adjacent seat, for exanple, in order to
deci de how to proceed. He asked why that should be included.

CHAIR McCGU RE suggested the first part could be narrowed as to
the potential party to say sonmething |ike "unless the attorney
has been voluntarily contacted by a claimant” and that the party
is a part of the [incident], for exanple.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA, in response to a request from Chair
McGQuire, reiterated his second concern.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS agreed with respect to the second concern
and allowi ng passengers to talk with each other. As for the
first concern, he wurged caution, since a |awer who' d been
contacted by one person would be the only | awer who could then
call everybody el se.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that it would still be crimnal for
that |awer to ask, "By the way, can | represent you?"

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS nenti oned connecting the dots, though.

M5. TONDI NI explained that the |anguage is based on the federa
| aw, whi ch includes both an attorney and a potential party.

Nunmber 0645

CHAIR McGU RE asked whether this is identical to the federa
| anguage.

M5. TONDINI replied, "Except that it's expanded to cover the air
carrier's attorney." She noted that the federal |aw and the
| anguage of the Alaska Rules of Professional Conduct are in the
bill packet. Addressing Representative Gara's concern about the
br eadt h, she suggested possibly including [|anguage from
Rule 7.3(a) and narrowing it to situations of solicitation,
rat her than actual working relationships. Ms. Tondi ni surm sed
that one reason for saying soneone shouldn't be contacted by an
attorney mght be that once a person is represented by an

attorney, it is illegal to go through that person and not
his/her lawer. Since there will be a tine during which people
won't be represented, she suggested this wll "keep everyone
away" until they take it upon thenselves to seek [lega
counsel ].

CHAIR MGU RE remarked that 45 days is a fairly insignificant
anount of time to ask sonebody to wait and have a cooling-off
peri od when conpared with the years such a case could take. She
indicated her intention to look at narrowing it a little bit,
but added that there still probably will "be a place where
there's a rub" because of the concerns Representative Sanuels
had brought up.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS suggested [a plaintiff] who wanted
his/her attorney to talk to other passengers could ask the
passengers to talk to the attorney. He said it wouldn't be fair
to a reputable attorney who follows the 45-day rule, which is
the federal standard, to "l et sonebody in the back door here.”

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA said there are two different issues. First,
in any involved case it is necessary to start investigating
right away in order to gather facts, find people before they
| eave the state, avoid having stale evidence, and so forth. As
for having an attorney contact a witness who then wants to be
represented by the attorney, Representative Gara said that
happens now. He clarified that he has no problem naking it a
crime for an attorney to solicit a client, especially in this
timeframe, but enphasized the need to avoid getting in the way
of sonmeone to be represented and have fact finding done.
Second, he said he doesn't understand the policy of not letting
a potential party talk to another passenger for 45 days.

Nunmber 0928

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that he sees nothing in the
federal law that has a crimnal penalty anything |ike this. He
asked Ms. Tondi ni about it.

M5. TONDINI replied that she believes the state crimnal penalty
was chosen "just for teeth" in enforcenent. She conveyed her
understanding that it's not enforced very nmuch on the federal
|l evel and is a small civil fine.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it's $1,000 a day.
M5. TONDI NI responded, "They shouldn't be doing it anyway."

CHAIR McGUIRE highlighted the desire for a neaningful penalty
and said the anobunt [attorneys] could get in contingency fees
could be high enough that they'd pay a $10,000 penalty with no
problem as part of doing business. She said the point of the
crimnal penalty is that it's recognized by the bar in terns of
retaining a license. She expressed the desire for this to have
teeth and not be a cost that's sinply absorbed [by the offending
attorney].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether there has been any
constitutional challenge at the federal |evel

M5. TONDINI said she wasn't sure, but suggested sonebody on
t el econference m ght be able to answer.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renarked that he sees one or two m nor
problenms with this.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- April 6, 2004



Nunber 1052

REPRESENTATI VE GARA proposed having the bill read as follows
begi nning on line 6 [page 1]:

. an attorney nmay not initiate contact wth an
individual injured in the accident or a relative of an
individual involved in the accident to offer or
di scuss representation based on the accident for
personal injury or wongful death within 45 days of
t he acci dent.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA expl ai ned that the foregoing woul d [exclude]
"potential party" and replace "concerning a potential action”
with "to offer or discuss representation based wupon the
acci dent".

CHAIR McGUI RE turned to public testinony.

Nunber 1127

MARCIA R DAVIS, Vice President and Ceneral Counsel, FEra
Avi at i on, I nc. ("Era"), i ndi cat ed t he pr oposal [ by
Representative Gara] is exactly what she'd suggest. She pointed
out that wunder the federal law where it has the |anguage
"potential party", the reference was intended to capture the air
carrier. However, the state bill goes further by including

| anguage that prohibits contact by an attorney for the air
carrier. Thus she said "or potential party" is not needed.

M5. DAVIS referred to comments by Representative Gara that one
woul dn't want to prohibit an attorney from contacting other

W tnesses or gathering facts. Saying this is a legitinmate
concern, she suggested that deleting "or potential parties”
sol ves that problem and yet still bars the attorney for the air
carrier from contacting individuals. She added that the

| anguage just proposed about retention for enploynent works
extrenmely well al so.

IVS. DAVIS spoke to the overall bill, saying ERA' s Bush
operations out of Bethel have run very snoothly, with a good
rel ationship with passengers, managenent by people who live in
Bethel, and little difficulty; in the last year and a half,
however, there has been evidence that people are creating
"nui sance lawsuits" in situations that previously weren't
litigable. She said it's alnpst a cottage industry in the Bush,
with attorneys advising people in the imrediate afternmath when

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- April 6, 2004



they hear that a plane |anded just short of the runway and there
was a bunp, for exanple; they plant ideas in the m nds of people
who ot herwi se woul dn't have thought about suing.

M5. DAVIS said these lawsuits are beginning to be a real problem
for insurers; they take away attention from legitimte clains
and affect the wllingness to do business. Unfortunately, the
teeth in the mechanisnms to prevent this behavior aren't there.
The ethics rules have a lot of "wggle room" particularly in

small communities where people can <claim they're persona
friends or connected to the famlies sonehow. Li kewi se, she
said, the federal law has been virtually useless, since it

requires the NTSB [National Transportation Safety Board] or the
US. Attorney General to issue a citation; it sinply doesn't
happen in Alaska's intrastate environnent. Even if substanti al
resources were expended, she suggested the $1,000 fine would be
| aughed at and consi dered the cost of doing business.

M5. DAVIS opined that this is an inportant statenment to make -
not only to the comunity at large and |awers at |arge, but
also to insurers, to let them know an effort is being nade to
keep costs rational but fair. Ms. Davis reported that she'd
seen no cases on the federal side challenging this particular
statute, which was passed as part of the aviation disaster and
famly assistance Act and is inbedded in an NTSB provision. She
noted that there was a sting operation on |awers done perhaps
15 years ago in the aftermath of these accidents, which
culmnated in passage of the federal |aw.

Number 1411

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS declared a conflict, saying he is
enpl oyed by a small air carrier

CHAIR McGU RE objected, specifying that Representative Samnuels
is required to participate and vote.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked Ms. Davis if attorneys are calling
peopl e and aski ng whet her they want to sue.

M5. DAVIS answered that they're actually going to the hospital
Whenever there is a bunp, for exanple, Era [encourages] the
passengers to go to the health center as a prophyl actic neasure.

[Chair McQuire turned the gavel over to Vice Chair Anderson.]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA renmarked that assumng the |anguage is
adopted that he and she discussed, he'll support the bill. He
suggested perhaps Ms. Davis should file a bar conplaint [against
t hose attorneys].

M5. DAVIS reiterated that she'd |ooked at the ethics rules but
found w ggle room She said Rule 7.3 basically prohibits a
| awyer from soliciting in person or via telephone contact; the
exception is if the prospective client is rel ated.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked Ms. Davis to call himif she sees a
case that cones close to that |ine again, saying he mght sign a
bar conplaint with her

M5. DAVI S explained that she is cautious because there are lots

of wvarious relationships wthin small comunities and it
woul dn't be good to take a broad swath that makes an eneny out
of a sector of a comunity. She acknow edged that these are

extrene cases.
Nunber 1548

TOM N COLOS, GCeneral WMnager, Cape Snythe Air Service; Vice
President, Board of Directors, Al aska Air Carriers Association

voi ced strong support for HB 549 on behalf of both the air
service and the association in order to correct an oversight in
the federal aviation disaster and fam |y assistance Act of 1996,
which failed to put into effect any substantial deterrent.
Saying the air service has seen attorneys firsthand who operate
with disregard to the federal Act, he cited an exanple.
Agreeing wth providing for passengers who are involved in
occurrences, he enphasized the need to stop the sense of
entitlement that has been fostered by attorneys who know the
system and know that they can "nuscle settlenents” out of air
carrier insurers, and who take advantage of famlies when they
are nost vul nerabl e.

Nunmber 1652

ART WARBELOW President, Warbelow s Air Ventures, Inc., began by
saying his business has operated about 35 years and has about
100 enpl oyees in Fairbanks. He expressed support for HB 549
because of the high cost of Iliability insurance, the fourth-
| ar gest expense behi nd | abor, fuel, and parts.

[Vice Chair Anderson returned the gavel to Chair MQuire.]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- April 6, 2004



MR. WARBELOW continued, saying nost air carriers in Al aska are
underinsured; there is a legal [mnimn] of $300,000, and nost
[have insurance limts] in the range of $300,000 to $500, 000.
Wen there's an accident, a conpany realizes the carrier 1is

underinsured and is willing to settle quickly for policy limts.
In that scenario, an attorney who can get to the victim can
extract a significant contingent fee, knowing it will be an easy
case to settle; the victim ends up shortchanged. M . War bel ow
suggested that allowng tinme for the operator and the insurance
conpanies to settle will get nore noney to those who deserve it,

rat her than the attorneys.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whether there is a significant
difference in premiunms for a $300,000 policy and sonething
M. War bel ow consi ders nore adequate.

MR. WARBELOW replied that part of the problem is that the
underwiters won't provide higher limts, period. He cited an
exanpl e and said people can barely afford to buy [the m ninunj.
Saying this is driven by a nunber of factors, he nentioned the
difficulty of getting the cost of insurance to the point that
peopl e can afford to buy reasonabl e coverage.

Number 1824

ED GREGOR (ph), AIG Aviation Insurance (ph), echoed the
statenents of M. N colos and M. Warbel ow, expressed concern
about capacity in the insurance market; and said although
brokers make heroic efforts to nake limts as high as possible
on behalf of their clients, insurers sonetines suffer in their
ability to effect good, strong defenses because of the |ow
limts. "It's a concern for us," he added; "we would prefer to
see higher limts." Appl auding the discussion wthin the
commttee about keeping the |anguage "broad yet specific,”" he
said it needs to be broad enough to prevent creative solutions.

MR. CGREGOR noted that in 25 years he has seen interesting
extrenes relating to the solicitation of clains. He cited
exanples from Louisiana and M ssissippi when events involving
chemcal plants led to attorneys' signing people up for huge
class action lawsuits. Acknowl edging it isn't to that extent in
Al aska, he said there is concern by insurers nonethel ess when
solicitation is uninhibited for mnor accidents. Ofering his
perspective as a clainms handler, M. Gegor said it upsets him
that he often doesn't have the opportunity to exhibit the good
will that is available and to help carriers assist injured
passengers as quickly as possible, including all-inportant

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- April 6, 2004



i nmedi ate financi al assi stance when breadw nners have been
i njured.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA opi ned that just as an attorney shouldn't be
able to solicit a client within the first 45 days, a defendant
shouldn't be able to get a client to waive the right to pursue
| egal action.

MR, GREGOR agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whether the early financial assistance
has strings attached.

MR. GREGOR answered that the federal law requires carriers to
provide imedi ate financial assistance; it is the practice and
part of the coverage of the air carriers to provide that sort of
assistance up front as well. He specified that there are no
strings attached. Recogni zing that these clains for people who
are genuinely injured can be large, he said an i medi ate paynent
of $10, 000, $20,000, or $25,000 won't significantly change the
fact that the claim wll have to be settled for paynent of
addi ti onal noni es down the road.

Number 2024

PAUL LANDIS, Menber, Board of Directors, Alaska Air Carriers
Associ ation, noted that he is senior vice president of Era

Aviation, 1Inc., but was speaking on behalf of the Al aska Ar
Carriers Association, whose executive director and president
were unable to testify. M. Landis said the association

certainly wunderstands the sense of entitlenent that exists,
particularly now in rural Al aska, where |awers are making
prom ses that can't be kept to passengers who listen in a weak
nmonent .

MR. LANDIS nentioned the air carriers' practice of bringing
passengers to hospitals for an exam nation follow ng any sort of
incident, and that |awers are waiting to sign them up on the
spot . He reported that also being heard from the air carriers
is that follow ng turbulence or a hard |anding, passengers my
experience soreness that wll disappear in 48 hours, but these
peopl e are hooked in with prom ses of easy cash. He cited the
exanple of a fear-of-flying lawsuit and out-of-court settlenent
following the collapse of nose gear when a plane landed in
Bet hel . The effort with HB 549 is to prevent the unsolicited
strong-arm ng of passengers by |lawers, he said, which drives up

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- April 6, 2004



the cost of insurance and, in the long run, hurts the traveling
public. He urged support for HB 549 as witten.

Nunber 2131

MELI SSA FOUSE specified that she was speaking on her own behalf
as a survivor and famly nenber of soneone who was killed in an
ai rplane crash, although she is executive director of the Al aska
Acadeny of Trial Lawers. She said:

Frankly, I"'ma little offended by the testinony of the
ai rplane people who say, ... "Oh, it's just a bunp on
the end of the runway and these |awers are |Iike
pi ranhas. " My brother was actually killed, and we
didn't have a single |lawer contact us until after the
federal |aw date - not one single |awer. I will say
that at the end of that, we did get solicitations, and
that was fine because we wanted to know what to do
next .

M5. FOUSE related her opinion that nmaking this a felony is
absurd, and that it isn't the attorneys who start the cycle;
rather, it is the accident. She asked the commttee, when
considering this legislation, to please consider the people who
were hurt or killed.

CHAI R McGU RE apol ogi zed if any comments fromthe commttee were
of fensive; she said the intent certainly isn't to mnimze the
loss or injury suffered in accidents, and many tines recovery is
deserved. She explained that there is a rule of professional
conduct in this sane spirit and that this is to get at
[attorneys] who are soliciting passengers inappropriately.
Referring to earlier discussion, she stated the intention of
narroming this from the federal law on which it is based, to
clarify that it wouldn't exclude legitimte cases where
information i s needed.

Number 2321

ROBERT JACOBSEN, President, Wngs of Al aska, noted that Wngs of
Al aska and Wngs Airways are sister conpanies and indicated they
enpl ane about 75,000 passengers annually. Speaki ng in support
of the bill, M. Jacobsen said he has been in the business about
25 years and has seen accidents over the years, both "bunps and
brui ses" and catastrophic ones. He said:

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- April 6, 2004



Honestly, we care deeply about the industry, and this
is an attenpt to start to help this henorrhaging
i ndustry that we've been experiencing for a nunber of
years. But also, nost of ny professional colleagues
in this business have a lot of integrity, and we care
deeply about our custoners too. Qur custoners are our
nei ghbors, and we care about them

MR. JACOBSEN recal l ed four instances when there were m shaps but
no serious injuries; he said plaintiff attorneys got hold of his
custoners, who weren't cared for in the long run because they
weren't well represented and their attorneys took that "one-

third plus expenses” away from the settlenent. He remarked,
"That doesn't make us feel good; ... we'd just as soon nore of
it get into the hands of the famlies or the victins that

were part of the incident.” He encouraged passage of HB 549 and

consideration of nore tort-reform i ssues.

CHAIR MGU RE asked whether anyone else wshed to testify.
Hearing no response, she then closed public testinony.

TAPE 04-59, SIDE B
Nunber 2392

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Anendnent 1, a handwitten
anmendnent that read [original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, Line 6
After "attorney"
Del ete "or potential party”

Page 1, Line 8

After "accident”

Del ete "concerning a potential action”

Insert "for the purpose of offering or discussing
potential representation in an action”

Number 2379
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA expl ai ned that Amendnent 1 does what he and
Ms. Davis had discussed earlier: it limts crimnal conduct to
those attorneys who contact a client in the first 45 days
seeking to be hired, and it deletes the |anguage that addresses
"sort of the situations that | think we don't want to address
with this bill."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM renoved hi s objection.
Number 2350

CHAIR McGUI RE asked whether there was any further objection to
Amendnent 1. [No objection was stated, and Anendnent 1 was
treated as adopted.]

CHAIR MGUI RE remarked that it's a good anendnent and suggested,
"You should contact the federal folks, too, because throughout
their statute it says 'potential action' and 'potential party'
and it is broad."

REPRESENTATIVE GARA replied that he thinks it's trying to
prevent insurance conpanies from getting people to settle
qui ckly before they can contact an attorney. He added that it's
beyond the scope of what [HB 549] is intended to address.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG referred to line 6 and asked why "intrastate"
is used, rather than having this also apply to interstate or
international [flights].

CHAIR MGU RE said it's because federal |aw would supercede; the
bill can only apply to flights within the state because there's
already a federal |aw

Number 2260

M5. DAVIS said that when the federal governnent chooses to
regulate the interstate aspects of aviation, the state cannot
"step over the top of that,” but can legislate relative to
purely intrastate [flights]. She offered her belief that
there'd be a significant "federal preenption problen if the
bill went beyond intrastate activity. She added that other than
the obvious ones, few flights go directly out of state; if they
do, Alaska's state |law would be trunped by federal |aw as well
as international |aw

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked whether Al aska's law could be stricter
than the federal | aw.

M5. DAVIS answered that because the federal law resides within
NTSB's body of law, in the aviation and famly disaster Act, she
guessed the question would be whether [Alaska's law] could be
nore solicitous and hel pful to famlies. She said that it's not
quite like comrerce, where there are "overlaying I|ayers of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- April 6, 2004



commerce," since NISB is "sort of an all-or-none kind of

entity." She went on to say it's possible that [Alaska' s |aw
could be nore restrictive regarding intrastate aspects, and she
offered to look into whether it would doom the bill if it were

expanded to cover interstate [flights].
REPRESENTATI VE OGG sai d he'd appreciate that.
Nunber 2149

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON noved to report the proposed CS for HB
549, Version 23-LS1860\D, Bullock, 4/1/04, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
zero fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 549(JUD) was
reported fromthe House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

HB 336 - ClVIL DAMAGES FOR UNI NSURED DRI VERS

Number 2137

CHAI R M@U RE announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 336, "An Act |limting recovery of civil damages
by an uninsured driver; and providing for an effective date."

Number 2128

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 336, explained that the bill has three provisions. It
provides that persons who do not conply with existing notor
vehicle laws may not recover for danages for noneconom c |oss

suffered while operating their cars. Second, it provides that
punitive danmages are not required to be of the mandated offers
of uni nsur ed/ underi nsured notori st cover age. Third, it

clarifies that insurance conpanies are not required to offer
uni nsur ed/ underinsured notorist coverage on insurance policies
that provide coverage for auto liability on an excess or
unbrel | a basis.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER nentioned that the first section was
brought to his attention by a constituent who asked why his [car
i nsurance] paynents had to be nade every six nonths when his
nei ghbor did not even have insurance and yet could drive.
Representative Meyer agreed it was not fair, and noted that
ot her states had passed legislation simlar to HB 336 called "no
pay, no play." Driving is a privilege, and unless you pay and
abide by the laws of the state, then you shouldn't be able to
drive," he said. He pointed out that recently California passed

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -19- April 6, 2004



Proposition 213, by a 77 percent vote, even though it was
estimated that 35 percent of the people did not have insurance.
In Alaska it is estinmated that between 16-20 percent of drivers
do not have car insurance. He said it is a matter of fairness
to require that everyone have auto insurance in order to be able
to drive in Alaska, and those who opt to break the |aw should
not have the right to sue for danages. The uninsured notori st
will still be able to recover for econonm c danages, just not the
punitive - the pain and suffering - damages, he expl ai ned.

Number 2006

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER expl ai ned that the second part of the bil
has to do with clarifying what insurance conpanies are required
to offer and what Al askans are required to obtain as far as car
i nsurance goes. He added:

The Al aska Suprene Court handed down a decision in
2001 that said that uninsured/underinsured notorist

coverage nust mrror a policyholder's liability
cover age. It was interpreted that iif there is
coverage for punitive danages under a person's
liability policy, t hen a person's
uni nsured/ underi nsured notorist coverage nust also
have coverage for punitive damages. However, in the
statute there is nothing requiring this. State
statute only requires that financial limts on an
uni nsured/underinsured policy match the financial
limts on a liability policy. There's also no
requi r enment t hat a regular autonobile liability

i nsurance policy has punitive danage recovery. As you
know, punitive damages are intended to punish or
deter, and it's hard for me to see how an uninsured

not ori st IS puni shed when t hey are seeki ng
conpensation from an insured person who's actually
funding the right for recovery. So, in other words,

you' re paying that person to sue you for damages.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER related that the last part of the bill
clarifies that uninsured/ underinsured notorist coverage only has

to be offered on autonobile liability policies and not on
insurance policies that provi de coverage for aut onobi | e
liability wunder an wunbrella basis. The intent is to avoid

repetitive offers; insurance conpanies don't have to offer that
and people don't have to pay for repetitive offers, he
expl ai ned.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 20- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that Section 3 is a concern because he
has unbrella insurance which allows himto buy up to $1, 000, 000
of uni nsured/ underinsured coverage. The insurance conpany does
not offer that |arge anmount of coverage unless an unbrella
policy is purchased, he related. He noted that his liability
i nsurance does not provide that coverage, but his wunbrella
cover age does. He asked if Section 3 interferes with this type
of unbrella coverage.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER deferred to the insurance industry speakers
for the answer, but said he thinks it is optional and not a
requi renent.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said it is nandated under current |aw that
i nsurance conpanies have to offer the right to buy up to
$1, 000, 000 worth of wuninsured/underinsured coverage. He said he
is wrried that [HB 336] mght roll that back.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER replied that all the bill is trying to do
is avoid repetitive policies.

Number 1849

JOHN L. GEORGE, Lobbyist for Property Casualty Insurers
Association of America - which, he explained, consists of
conpanies that wite about 50 percent of all the autonobile
i nsurance in Al aska - answered Representative Gara's question by
saying that the mandatory offer is wunder the primary auto
i nsurance policy and low limts or up to $1, 000,000 coverage can
be bought. It is not reduced by not having it under an unbrella
policy, unless it is a policy in excess of $1, 000,000, he added.

Number 1797

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noved to adopt the proposed conmttee
substitute (CS) for HB 336, I|abeled 23-LS1254\D, Bull ock
2/ 23/ 04. There being no objection, Version D was before the
comittee.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA repeated that his insurance conpany told him
he could not buy $1,000,000 worth of insurance unless he bought
the unbrella policy. He said he does not want to interfere with
the right to buy that policy.

MR. GEORGE replied that he is certain that the mandatory offer

is by the primary carrier and has nothing to do with the excess
policy and suggested that Representative Gara my have been

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -21- April 6, 2004



m sinformed or may have m sunderstood his options. He offered
to followup on it.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA said he has been msinforned by his
i nsurance conpany before.

MR. CGECRCGE continued to explain his extensive background wth
insurance and said that as director and deputy director of the
i nsurance division he frequently got calls from consuners who
wer e upset because other people did not have insurance, causing
their insurance rates to go up if there was an accident. He
noted that there have been nmany attenpts to get people to buy
i nsurance by mandating it, but it remains a problem with 16-18
percent uninsured drivers. He said there are test questions on
the driver's license exam regarding the requirenent to have
insurance, and there are vehicle registration requirenents
certifying that the owner has liability insurance, and yet, a
significant portion of drivers |ack insurance. As a result
there was a mandated offer of wuninsured/underinsured notorist
coverage so people could protect thenselves from people who did
not have i nsurance. He nentioned that there have been a nunber
of attenpts to nmake people aware that autonobile insurance is a
requirenent. This bill would restrict a person's ability to
coll ect the noneconom c damages and would serve as a rem nder
and as a penalty for driving wthout insurance, he concl uded.

Nunmber 1583

MR. CEORCGE gave an exanple of sone of the problenms related to
unbrella policies. Many conpani es have stopped witing unbrella
policies or have sought other conpanies that wuld wite
unbrella policies over their own conpany's policies. He stated
that there are advantages for having the sane carrier for
primary and excess policies. It is nore efficient and
practical, but, at this point, not possible with sonme insurance
conpani es today, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG read on page 2, [lines 10-12], "coverage for
punitive damages that mght otherwise be recoverable from an
uni nsured or underinsured person is not required under this
paragraph”, and asked if sonmeone who s uninsured drove
reckl essly and "ran into you, but you had
[ uni nsured] /underinsured insurance on your policy, basically,
does this paragraph say that you won't be able to collect
puni tive damages under that policy?"

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -22- April 6, 2004



MR, CGEORGE replied, "You would not collect punitive danages
under your own - your self-procured - uninsured/ underinsured
notori st coverage. Yes, that's correct.” He explained that the
| ogic behind that idea is that punitive damages are designed as
a punishnent and are extra danages, not for medical or vehicle

or pain and suffering. He asked, "If you're the wuninsured
person and | collect punitive damages from ny insurance carrier,
and that neans | have to pay nore for ny insurance to cover

that, what punishnent is it to you?"

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON of fered another exanple. I f soneone
drives drunk on the wong side of the road down Egan Drive,
"they're itching for a punitive claim against them because
that's punishnment,” if they hit soneone who has no insurance.
He asked if the person who was hit could sue for punitive
damages.

MR, CGEORCE said a person can always sue. Just because a person
does not have insurance does not nean they don't have assets,
and a judgnent and collection may be obtained. But insurance is
the issue, he said, and he mintained that "nmy insurance
shoul dn't have to pay punitive damages for his negligent act,
but they will pay for ny car, ny nedical bills, ny pain and
suffering ...."

Nunber 1323

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the justification for Section
1 is purely punitive.

MR CGEORGE said no.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if t here IS anot her
justification. He said he thought that the logic is to punish
those who are uninsured by not allowing them to get reconpense
for pain and suffering.

MR. GEORGE replied that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Can you think of any other
|l ogic to support that section? Any other policy basis?"

MR GECRCE replied that the Ilegislature, in its wsdom
determ ned that everyone should have insurance and no one should
drive w thout insurance. This is a punitive deterrent for the
m sbehavior of failing to provide coverage, he said. "1'm
rem nded of the Golden Rule - do unto others as you would have

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -23- April 6, 2004



them do unto you. You are required to buy insurance to protect
the other person from your actions. You failed to do that.
Shoul d the ot her person have to protect you fromtheir actions?"
The other logic is that an invoice can be produced to show the
cost of danmage to a car or nedical bills or |ost wages, but pain
and suffering has no hard nunber, he concl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that the real policy behind
this is to elimnate pain and suffering [damage cl ai ns].

MR, CGEORCGE disagreed. He said the real reason for [the bill] is
for it to be a deterrent, to encourage people to buy insurance
so that this would never take effect.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said these are really two very

di fferent issues. He repeated that he believes the real policy
driving this bill is the desire to |imt pain and suffering as
damages. He said if that is true, "W should talk in frank

terms about the fairness or unfairness of pain and suffering.
The only justification |I've heard hear is that it is difficult
to neasure in dollars and cents. That's a far cry from saying

it's not fair."” He inplied that if pain and suffering is
elimnated entirely, it would save clients in the insurance
industry mllions of dollars annually. He called it a terrific

wi ndfall for the insurance industry.

MR, GEORGE replied that 20 percent [of drivers] are not paying
i nsurance prem uns.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about the other 80 percent.

MR GEORGE said the bill is not designed by the insurance
industry to get out of paying noneconom c awards. He said the
i ndustry supports the bill, but it really is to encourage people

to conply with the | aw
Number 1010

REPRESENTATI VE GARA called the bill oddly incongruent and said
it does not seemto address the policy concerns that seemto be
the basis of the bill. The first part of the bill benefits a
bad actor. It says that if a person drinks, drives, and has an
accident wth an uninsured notorist, that person does not have
to pay the noneconom c damages. He said he is not synpathetic
to that idea. He asked if he is m ssing sonething.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 24- April 6, 2004



MR, CEORGE replied that the bill is directed at people who are
violating the law by not having insurance. "Had they conplied
with the Iaw, under that scenario that you gave, they would be
entitled to collect noneconom ¢ damages, " he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he is being asked to benefit the person
who injured other people and he is not willing to do that, so he

is not supportive of the first part of the bill. The second
part of the bill seenms to be just as illogical, he opined. He
asked if M. Ceorge would agree to say that all insurers would

have to offer uninsured/ underinsured coverage. He said he wants
to have the opportunity as a consunmer to buy a |arge anount of
cover age.

MR, CGECRCGE said it could be called sonething other than a
punitive danmage award. He suggested "conpensatory danmages or
wi ndfall profit,” because it really is not punitive to anyone
el se but the person who has to pay for it.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said one of the recognized purposes of
punitive damages is punishnment, but another is the inplicit
recognition that conpensatory damages never really end up fully
conpensating anyone after taxes and attorney's fees, and there
is that aspect in the wording "punitive danages."

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON asked if those are Representative Gara's
t houghts or | egal standards.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied, "In legal discussions.”" He said it
is really just about what a consumer gets to buy, so he said he
agrees with M. George that maybe it shoul dn't be nandat ed.

MR. CGECRCE said he believes that [conpensatory awards] are not
t axed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied that conpensatory and punitive
damages are taxable in a personal injury case. He said there
may be certain classes of cases where they are not taxed.

MR. GEORGE repeated that he believes that they are not taxed.
Number 0656

REPRESENTATI VE ANDERSON said that Representative G uenberg nade

a good point that soneone in the Ofice of the Attorney General
said that the "50 percent rule to the state" applied on punitive

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -25- April 6, 2004



[danages]. He said he would like to hear an opinion of the bil
fromthe Ofice of the Attorney General

MR, CGEORCGE said, "That is an interesting concept where you're
buying insurance to pay yourself for punitive damages, but half
of it goes to the state.”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM sai d he understood M. Ceorge to say:

The qualifications for insurance were not necessarily
in the best interest of all of us, and by us having
mandat ory i nsurance you have to provide it at whatever
cost you can provide it for. But, in general, it
seens to ne that it somehow raises the bar, then,
because your exposure is increased as the |evel of
i nexperience or bad driving ... enters into the
equati on.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said the problem is that just because a
person passes the driver's license test, it does not give
himher the right to drive. He asked M. George for his
t houghts on the matter.

MR. GEORGE replied that the legislative branch has to bal ance
what's good for the insurance conpany with what's good for the
publi c. He said he thinks that the decision of everyone being

insured is good public policy. "The insurance conpanies would
prefer not to have to offer it," he said. "But, because it is
mandated, there is an assigned risk plan. If no insurance
conpany wants to wite it, then they're assigned and an
i nsurance conpany wll wite it and it's nore expensive, but

it's certainly not a noney naker."

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked why "punitive damages” is left out of
Section 1.

MR, GEORGE replied it is not his bill and that he can take sone
responsi bly for the uninsured notorist additions to the CS, but
Representative Oyg nmay have to ask the sponsor his intent on
t hat section.

Number 0395

CHAIR McGQU RE said, "There are noneconom c danmages which are
|l oss of consortium loss of your ability to hold your child

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 26- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA said that noneconom ¢ damages are intended
to conpensate the person, to nmake the person whole. They are
not punitive but conpensatory, he expl ai ned. Punitive damages
are deterrents and puni shnents, he added.

CHAIR McGQU RE said generally that is true, but "some people
woul d argue that 'noneconom cs' go beyond conpensatory.”

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said the point of the bill is if soneone is a
bad actor, and they have "dirty hands", they are not going to
get the benefits. He asked why an uninsured person does not
| ose both noneconom c and punitive damages.

MR, CGECRCE deferred to M. Lessneier and to the bill sponsor to
answer that question.

CHAIR MGURE stated her intent to finish with the public
testinmony and then set the bill aside.

Nunmber 0158

DONNA J. M CREADY, Attorney at Law, Ashburn and Mason, said she
thinks it is great public policy to create incentives for people
to be insured when driving, and that there already exists a
penalty for driving without insurance in that a person could

| ose his or her |icense. However, this bill does not actually
do anything to neet the goal of getting people to drive wth
i nsurance, she opined. She nentioned the Portage d acier Road

Case where a drunk driver drove his truck into a | ake, was able
to get the truck out of the lake, and then hit a vehicle
containing two teenagers and their grandparents head-on. The
grandparents did not have insurance, she noted.

TAPE 04-60, SIDE A

Number 0001

M5. MCREADY continued to say that the two teenagers died and
the grandparents were seriously injured. Under this bill these
people would not be able to recover noneconom c damages for
pain, suffering and |oss. The nother of the teens who were
killed could not seek reconpense from the drunk driver. She
enphasi zed that these cases do happen and the bill would affect
t hese people. She said the bill instead should target the

peopl e who cause acci dents who do not have insurance.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -27- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE OGG said it appears from the way [HB 336] is
witten that the person who is driving without insurance is not
protected, but everyone else in the car is protected.

M5. McCREADY said that is a question she still has. She pointed
out that for children under 18, econom c danages are not very
hi gh. She asked for clarification on the issue that

Representative QOgg rai sed.
Number 0291

M CHAEL J. SCHNEI DER, Attorney at Law, Law Ofices of M chael J.
Schneider, PC, said that these issues are extrenely conplex.
The first part of the bill is a blatant gift to the insurance
i ndustry that cannot acconplish its stated goal, he opined. He
noted that Al aska has a mandatory requirenent to have insurance
before one can get a driver's license and if one drives wthout

i nsurance and has an accident one will |ose that I|icense. He
also said that in the face of those disincentives, one out of
five people is still driving wthout a [insurance]. He
mai ntai ned that this bill wll pose no incentive to [uninsured]
drivers who are just "trying to stay even with life" to worry
about damages they mght incur. He enphasized that the
i nsurance conpany will benefit by this bill

MR. SCHNEI DER termed the second part of the bill "solutions in
search of a problem"™ The Al aska Suprene Court has adopted the

mrror inmage approach in analyzing some insurance questions, so
if an insurance conpany, an uninsured/underinsured carrier, does
not want to be on the hook for punitive damge exposure, all
they've got to do is carefully wite their policy, he stated.

MR. SCHNEI DER addressed the third provision of the bil

regardi ng unbrella coverage. The insurance industry, in spite
of legislative demands that it offer wuninsured limts up to
certain levels, and wthout regard to the elected liability

| evel, for years has refused to conply with the law, he rel ated.

He said it is possible that Representative Gara did get the
wrong advice fromhis carrier because nany people do not get the
insurance that they are entitled to. He noted that uninsured
coverage can be waived in witing and said there is nothing
wong wth the Alaska Suprene Court's determnation that

uni nsured coverage can be attached to an unbrella policy. He
said it is not a problem and there is no need to address it

| egi sl atively.

Number 0818

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 28- April 6, 2004



M CHAEL L. LESSMEIER, Attorney at Law, Lessneier & Wnters,
Lobbyist for State Farm |Insurance Conpany ("State Farni), said
that when he started doing legislative work in 1983, one of the
nost controversial issues was the issue of mandatory autonobile
i nsur ance. He relayed that he has worked on every bill related
to the "mandatory autonobile insurance schene"” that is in effect
in this state, and he al so worked on the connected system set up
for mandated offers of uninsured/ underinsured notorist coverage,
which was an idea by the insurance industry in recognition of
the fact that there are going to be people that drive wthout
i nsur ance. [State Farm] has about 26 percent of the market, he
reported, or 123,511 policies in force. "In spite of what ny
col | eague M. Schneider told you, we think we do a good job of
selling uninsured notorist coverage, [because] 96 percent of our
pol i cyhol ders have uninsured notorist coverage," he said.

MR. LESSMEIER related that in 1983, there was a bill introduced
by then-Speaker of the House, Joe Hayes, and the concern at that
tinme was the uninsured notorist population. In the last 20
years there have been nunmerous changes in legislation and stil
16-18 percent of drivers are uninsured, and so one out of every
five or six accidents is going to be uninsured, which is a
significant problem for policyhol ders. He said that many other
states have addressed this issue. The rationale for the "no
pay, no play" was recently before the New Jersey Suprenme Court
in February of 2004. In a couple of sentences the policy is
expl ai ned. He read:

The law advances a policy of cost containnent by
ensuring that an injured uninsured driver does not
draw on the pool of accident victiminsurance funds to
which he did not contribute. The |legislation thus
gives the uninsured driver a very powerful incentive
to conply with the conpul sory insurance |aws, obtain
aut onobil e insurance coverage, or lose the right to
maintain a suit for both economc and noneconomc
i njuries.

MR. LESSMEI ER continued to say that in New Jersey, if sonebody
drives wthout insurance, they don't get to collect either

econonmi ¢ or nonecononi ¢ danages. Referring to Representative
G uenberg's question whether this bill is purely punitive or
not, M. Lessneier replied that it is not. It is intended to

ensure responsibility and fairness to the 82-84 percent of the
driving public that does pay for [insurance], he concl uded.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -29- April 6, 2004



Nunmber 1098

MR. LESSMEI ER said that there were a nunber of questions raised
about "benefiting a bad actor” and hurting sonebody that is
totally 1innocent. He nmaintained that sonebody that drives
W thout insurance is not totally innocent. They have a choice
in advance; if they want the protection of the system they need
to contribute to the funding of the system he said. "That is a
matter of fairness and that is a matter of responsibility," he
added.

MR. LESSMEI ER opined that there is nothing in Al aska |aw that
says the purpose of punitive damages is conpensatory.
"Punitive” by its very definition is punishnent, and when that
i ssue goes to the jury, the jury has already decided the issue
of conpensatory damages, he expl ai ned. He urged the conmittee
to not get sidetracked by that issue.

CHAIR MGQURE asked M. Lessneier about the I|ine between
conpensatory and punitive damages, such as noneconom ¢ damages.

MR. LESSMEIER replied that he would categorize punitive damages
as noneconom ¢ damages in the context of this bill because they
are not quantifiable.

CHAIR MGU RE responded, "You're saying that noneconom ¢
damages, in your opinion, are the sane as punitive?"

MR. LESSMEI ER replied, "No, what | would say is when we created
the limts for noneconom c damages in the tort reform clearly

those limts did not include punitive damges. There's no
guestion about that." He said it depends on how the committee
defines the term noneconom c. "I'f the conmmttee is concerned

about letting go the person who is the supposed w ong-doer that
commts a bad act, then perhaps you wouldn't want to include
punitive damges wthin the definition of noneconomc,” he
suggest ed.

CHAIR MGQUIRE said it probably relates to the 1997 tort reform
| egislation and the way that [insurance conpanies] wite their
policies. She asked if it is the case that noneconom c danages
and punitive damages are | unped together

Number 1307

MR. LESSMEIER said they are not really covered that way in the
pol i ci es. The way the policies are witten and the discussion

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 30- April 6, 2004



of concern regarding punitive danmages has to do with Section 2
of the bill, he explained. The Al aska Suprene Court adopted the
mrror rule in [State Farm Miutual Autonobile Insurance Co. .
Law ence] . "I'f we sell coverage for punitive damages under the
liability portion of the policy, ... it means that we now have
to sell that coverage and include that coverage in the
uni nsur ed/ underinsured notori st cover age. And it makes
absolutely no sense for our policyholders to pay a premum so
that they can recover punitive danmages. They' re not punishing
soneone else, because that soneone else is not paying those
punitive damages,"” he said. Furthernore, 50 percent of the
damages nust go to the state, he added.

CHAIR McGU RE asked M. Lessneier if it is his belief that
because of the mrror image rule, wthout a statutory change
there is no way for State Farm to do what has been suggested
about offering various choices to the consuner.

MR. LESSMEIER replied, "W can't." He pointed out that he has a
choice with two consequences because of what the Al aska Suprene
Court did. The first consequence is "we change our liability
policy, ... we take away the coverage where people may really

need it and they really want to pay for it, just because it
makes anot her coverage nore expensive, where it makes no sense
to have that coverage. So we'd have to take it away from the
liability policy in order to do what M. Schneider tal ked about.
It nmakes no sense for us to do that."

CHAIR MGUI RE added, "Just to get around it."

MR. LESSMEI ER continued, "The problemis ... that people don't
have that choice; they could have the choice by going and
purchasing a policy that doesn't provide it on the liability

side, so it doesn't provide it on the uninsured/underinsured
notori st side, also.”

CHAI R Mc@U RE summari zed her understanding by saying it's unfair
to all ow sonebody who is breaking the law to avail thensel ves of
hi gher privil eges.

Number 1505

MR. LESSMEI ER responded by saying that for sonebody who has not
contributed to the system that everyone else pays for, it's
unfair to allow himher full participation in that system He
repeated it is an issue of fairness and responsibility. He

responded to M. Schneider's comment that the only people who

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -31- April 6, 2004



woul d benefit by this are the insurance conpanies, by saying
that the challenge to the insurance industry has been to nake
its products affordable. He continued:

If we | ook back at our 20-year history - we go back to

1894 - we have decreased rates six tines. We have
increased rates a nunber of tine, too, but we do what
we're able to do in terns of the market. We | ook at

this particular coverage over the last four years; we
have paid out in ternms of our expenses and our claim
paynents, about $1.70-sonething for every dollar that
we've take in. W go back over the last 20 years and
we ook at what the premium structure has been wth
respect to uninsured/underinsured notorist coverage
versus what it's been for bodily injury and property
damage cover age.

Now uni nsured/underinsured has increased mnuch nore
rapidly and, of course, we've nade nany, many
significant changes to the law during that period of
time. But, there's a cost. W don't believe it is in
the interest of our policyholders to be funding
punitive damage clains against ourselves. W do not
believe it is necessary to nake these mandated offers
on pure excess policies when they are made on the
underlying autonobile policy at the tinme the person
purchases the vehicle and at every single tinme of
renewal, and they're made in witing. And if they're
not made, there are significant ... consequences.

CHAIR MGUI RE asked if insurance rates wll|l be decreasing.

MR. LESSMEIER replied that there is no way to answer that

guesti on. He referred to the tort reform legislation of 1997
and said there is not a clear answer as to whether it is
constitutional or not. He said HB 336 wll work in two
different ways if it is passed. It wll be a deterrent and
there will be fewer people on the roads w thout insurance. He
also predicted that clains will be reduced by people wthout
i nsurance, and he said he hopes that wll reduce the cost of
prem uns.

CHAIR MGU RE said she doesn't think it will act as a deterrent.

Nunmber 1663

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -32- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM presented a hypothetical situation of a
weal t hy person who chooses not to purchase insurance. Thi s
action says that the person is electing not to be able to
col |l ect damages because he or she makes plenty of noney and is
"self-insured,” he said. He asked what is wong wth that
pi cture.

MR. LESSMEI ER said that is a debate that was held back in 1983-
4, and there is a way for a self-insured person to avoid the
mandat ory i nsurance | aws.

CHAI R MGUJ RE asked how that is done.

MR. LESSMEI ER replied that he would have to go back and | ook at
the statutory schenme to be able to do that.

CHAIR MGU RE asked M. Lessneier to bring that information
t onmor r ow.

MR. LESSMEI ER related that the policy nade back then required
all people who drove to have at least a mninmum |limt of
liability, "50/100/25." He said that that coverage for nost
people has remained relatively affordable. He said a system
cannot be created in Alaska that would allow for the policing of
the self-insured. People are mandated to buy insurance at a
certain level and the insurance conpanies are mandated to nake
the offers summari zed on page 2 of the proposed CS. He said it
is not a perfect system but it is the best system currently
avai |l abl e.

Nunber 1784

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM said he objected to several things that M.
Lessnei er said, such as the inplication that people are "guilty"
if they didn't benefit the general public when they choose to
sel f-insure. He maintained that the public is not hurt by a
weal thy person not carrying insurance. He questioned whether
the legislature should be passing laws to benefit insurance
conpani es.

MR. LESSMEIER said he did not nmean to offend Representative
Hol m He said he didn't think that this bill wll benefit the
i nsurance conpanies, but the benefit wll be passed al ong. He
sai d:

| think that if we're going to go back and debate the
i ssue of mandatory insurance at the very begi nning and

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 33- April 6, 2004



try to create a system that would exenpt those that
are in your situation, that you described, then we

have to talk about a different system | appl aud
those people who are able to be financially
responsi bl e. Most people can't. | don't know that

we've figured out a way to enforce a systemlike that.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM recalled that his father was self-insured
for fire insurance for years because he didn't borrow noney from
t he bank.

CHAIR MGURE said it is a tough debate whether to have
mandat ory i nsurance or not.

Nunmber 1893

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, responding to the earlier discussion of
noneconom ¢ damages such as pain, suffering, |oss of enjoynent
of life, stated that those are conpensatory, not punitive
damages according to statutory definition

MR. LESSMEIER replied that the noneconom ¢ damage caps that were
passed were not intended to |imt punitive damages. There is a
separate section of that |l|egislation that addresses punitive
damages, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG referred to Section 1 and the New Jersey
Suprene Court saying that no danages are awarded [to uninsured
drivers]. He said he wondered about the justification of
awar di ng econoni ¢ damages in Al aska.

MR. LESSMEI ER opined that the Al aska Suprene Court would uphol d
this section of the bill because it is a legislative policy
choi ce about where to draw the Iine. He said he also believes
that it is in the legislature's power to go further with this
l egislation in the hope that it mght achieve nore. He said he
suspects this [bill] conmes from what was passed in California.
There are six or seven states that have al so done sone variation
of this, he added.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said he does not buy the "deterrent” argunent
that much and nay be interested in adding a sunset clause of
five or seven years; then, if it doesn't show a neasurable
deterrent, nmaybe that portion is not needed. He said he still
has questions about the section that deals wth punitive
damages.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 34- April 6, 2004



MR. LESSMEI ER explained that what the bill basically says is
that "we don't have to." Sinmply because it is sold in the
liability portion of the policy, does not nean it has to be
included in the wuninsured/underinsured portion of the policy.
He opined that there won't be nuch of a demand for that product
because people won't want to fund the ability to recover
puni ti ve damages agai nst sonebody el se.

Nunber 2119

CHAIR MGU RE asked whether, if one of these cases went to
court, would the fact that sonebody is uninsured or underinsured
go toward contributory negligence.

MR. LESSMEIER replied that the only possible way that that could
cone into evidence would be on a punitive damage claim |If part
of what they're covered for on the liability portion of the
policy is punitive damages, then there's a pretty good argunent
that evidence of amount of insurance would go to the jury, he
opi ned.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pointed out that the 1997 tort reform
|l egislation did go to the Alaska Suprenme Court where it was
uphel d.

MR. LESSMEI ER expl ained that whenever a piece of |egislation
like this is passed, there is a period of tinme where the
legislation will be challenged, and different interpretations
made. A good exanple of that is the [State Farm Mitua
Aut onobi | e I nsurance Co. v. Lawence] decision. He relayed:

Qur product was never priced to cover punitive damages

on uni nsured/ underinsured notorist coverage. ... Many
of the wunbrella policies were not priced to cover
uni nsur ed/ under i nsur ed. So we don't know what the
court's going to do, and the exanple that | gave you

is a valid one because, right now, as you know, the
court upheld the constitutionality of tort reform but
it did so on a 2-2 decision, and a 2-2 decision is not
pr ecedent .

MR. LESSMEIER noted that it took 10 years for California to
litigate the constitutionality of the MCRA [Medical Injury

Conmpensation Reform Act] that was passed. It's taken seven
years in Alaska and there is not a definitive answer yet, he
sai d. He opined that in looking back at the history of

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 35- April 6, 2004



insurance in Alaska, the rates reflect the experience. He said
he would like to think that [Al aska] is a conpetitive market.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA replied, "I suspect that when you argue
about the Al aska Supreme Court ruling that upheld our 1997 tort
reform [legislation] ... in court, and you're on the defense
side, | suspect that you tell the <court that that 1is a

definitive ruling.”

CHAIR McGU RE relayed that HB 336 [Version D] would be set
asi de.

HB 438 - MOVE OVER LAW FOR DRI VERS

Nunber 2294

CHAI R Mc@GU RE announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 438, "An Act relating to notorists noving over or
sl owi ng down for energency vehicles.”

Number 2300

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM roved to adopt CSHB 438(STA). There being
no objection, it was so ordered.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM sponsor of HB 438, explained that the bil
was brought to him by public safety officers in the state
because of concern about danger. He deferred to M. Rudig.

Number 2320

MATTHEW RUDI G Staff to Representative Jim Holm Alaska State
Legi sl ature, sponsor, agreed that safety is the goal of the bil

and said noving over and slowng down can save |ives. He
reported that 93 law enforcenent officers across the country
from 1997 to 2002 were struck and killed by vehicles alongside
of roads; nmany nore were injured, and substantially nore

experienced close calls. Al t hough no neasure of "nove over”
| egislation wll guarantee conplete safety for officers and
ot her energency personnel, he said this bill, along with further

public education efforts, can heighten drivers' awareness of the
i nherent danger to these nen and wonen who serve the public. He
indicated that at |east 38 states have already addressed this
i ssue.

[An at-ease was called because of a technical difficulty; this
is the end of Tape 04-60.]

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 36- April 6, 2004



TAPE 04-61, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR MGUI RE cal l ed the neeting back to order.

MR. RUDIG noted that Allen Storey and Shell ey Oaens could answer
guesti ons. He closed by saying, "These people fight for our
lives every day, ... and this legislation is just an opportunity
for the legislature to fight for theirs.”

Number 0100

ALLEN STOREY, Lieutenant, Central Ofice, D vision of Al aska
State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), testified in
support of HB 438, saying it's long overdue. He gave real-life
exanples involving two of his own patrol cars, the car of his
first patrol sergeant, two troopers in the Palnmer region who
were struck recently, and a near mss he'd seen just that
nor ni ng. If the bill beconmes |law, he surmsed that [DPS s]
public information office can get the word out through public
service announcenents and other efforts so people know of the
requirenent, which is to slow down and provide a cushion of
safety to people who are trying to help others in need - not
just troopers and police officers, but also volunteer and
professional firefighters and others taking care of business on
t he shoul der of the road.

Number 0239

SHELLEY OWENS, Health Program WManager, Community Health &
Emer gency Medi cal Servi ces, Division of Public Heal t h,
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), testified that
the departnent supports this bill in the hope it will reduce the
i nci dence of secondary collisions that result from inattentive
and distracted drivers. She provided statistics and further

informati on as foll ows:

It is westimted that there are 12,000 energency
medi cal vehicle collisions each year, and the US
Fire Admnistration reports that enmergency vehicle
crashes are the second |eading cause of death for
firefighters. The International Association of Chiefs
of Police reported that in 1997 nearly 40 percent of
| aw enforcenent officers who died in the line of duty
died in traffic.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -37- April 6, 2004



And Washington State found that in a seven-year period
over 3,000 shoulder collisions - <collisions where a
vehicle was parked on the side of the road - resulted
in 40 deaths and 1,770 injuries. In Florida during a
five-year period, 1996 to 2000, notorists crashed into
working ... law enforcenent vehicles that were stopped
along Florida roadways 1,800 tines, resulting in five
deat hs and over 400 injuries.

In Alaska, in the four-year period from 1998 to 2001
386 energency response vehicles were involved in
acci dents. O the 386 crashes, 46 incidents involved

a parked energency response vehicle. There's also a
statistic from California that ... once there's been
an initial accident, ... the fact that this vehicle is

on the side of the road creates a 600 percent increase
of likelihood of a secondary collision.

MS. OVENS concl uded:

Motor vehicle operators are exposed to nmultiple

sources  of distraction including nobile phones,
radios, children, failure to see or hear sirens and
lights, and driver inattention. The depart nent

supports the efforts to reduce the nunber and severity
of injuries to fire, EMS [energency nedical service],
and | aw enforcenment personnel at energency scenes.

Nunmber 0390

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndi cated he had a question for soneone
fromthe Crimnal D vision of the Departnment of Law, but didn't

see anyone present. Noting that he was searching for statute
related to nental states and the requirenents for culpability,
he expl ained that subsection (a) of the bill requires a person

to nove over [or slow to specified speeds], and subsection (b)
makes it a class A msdeneanor if [the behavior] results in

injury. However, it just says "who violates this section"” [on
line 14], which he suggested alnost mekes it a crime of strict
liability. Thus he proposed that the bill should at |east say

"negligently or sonething" because people can go to jail for a
year.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that "knowing" is inportant in a

lot of the crimnal [statutes], but he can't inagine soneone
using the defense of having sped by a car that had flashing

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 38- April 6, 2004



lights w thout know ng, which should be even worse, perhaps a
f el ony.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG read from the statute he'd been | ooking
for, AS 11.81.610, which stated in part:

(b) Except as provided in AS 11.81.600(b), if a
provision of law defining an offense does not
prescribe a cul pable nental state, the cul pable nental
state that nust be proved wth respect to

(1) conduct is "know ngly"; and

(2) a circunstance or aresult is "recklessly."”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thought that probably would
apply, but wasn't sure and was sinply drawing it to the
commttee's attention. He added that he was satisfied with the
| anguage now because he believed AS 11.81.610 "would be what
woul d be read into the statute if we |eave it alone.”

CHAI R McGQUI RE asked whether anyone else wished to testify. She
then cl osed public testinony.

Number 0619

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 1, |abeled 23-
LS1602\ D. 1, Luckhaupt, 4/2/04, which read:

Page 1, lines 11 - 13:

Delete all material.

Insert "fighter, shall slow to a reasonable and
prudent speed below the speed Iimt."

CHAIR MGU RE asked whether there were any objections to
Amendnent 1. There being none, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that Anendnent 1 was good and

clarified a lot for him but requested clarification. He said
he understands the circunstance when a trooper or anbulance is
dealing with an accident or injured person. But can soneone
still drive by at 55 mles an hour in the right |ane of the
highway if a trooper has pulled a driver over for speeding and
they're in the "breakdown" |[|ane? Wuld that be a safe and

prudent speed under the circunstances, or would it now be a
crime? he asked.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM answer ed:

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 39- April 6, 2004



It's nmy wunderstanding ... that the reason that we
offered the anendnent was so that it would be
reasonabl e and prudent speed. And that neans it would
have to be sonething defensible, at sonme point in
time, if there was a problem And | would assune, if

sonmeone was going 55 mles an hour past ... a problem
on the side of the road, he would mss the other
per son. If he didn't, | suppose it wuld be no

different than any other case where you are negligent
or reckless in your driving.

CHAIR McGUI RE paraphrased subsection (a)(1l), which talks about
safely vacating the lane closest to the energency, fire, or |aw
enforcenment vehicle when there are two or nore |anes traveling
in the sane direction.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noted that many people stay in the right
| ane when they see a trooper pull soneone over for speeding, but
said he thinks that would be OK with Anmendnent 1 because it says
"or if you are driving safely under the circunstances."”

CHAI R MGUI RE concurred, nentioning "reasonabl e and prudent”.
Nunmber 0754

CHAIR MGU RE asked Representative Holm whether he'd thought
about adding an "energency signal override" and whether there
al ready was a House version of Senator Therriault's [legislation
related to that].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said, "Let's get that in there too."
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM answered that he hadn't thought about it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reported that he'd talked to Senator

Therriault about that bill because the sanme firefighters who
were interested in the carbon nonoxide and arson |egislation
al so considered that a priority. He recalled that the feeling

expressed was that there was no need for House conpanion
| egi sl ati on because the Senate version was noving.

CHAI R MGUI RE renarked, "Fair enough - just an idea."
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it's a good idea.

Nunmber 0816

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -40- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report CSHB 438(STA), as anended
out of conmmttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
438(JUD) was reported from the House Judiciary Standing
Committee.

HB 430 - EMPLOYEES UNDER 21 AT LI CENSED PREM SES

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 367]
Nunber 0837

CHAI R McGUJI RE announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 430, "An Act relating to enployees under 21 years
of age in the premses of hotels, restaurants, and eating places
that are licensed to sell, serve, deliver, or dispense alcoholic
bever ages. "

Nunmber 0848

REPRESENTATI VE BETH KERTTULA, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,
acknow edged her staff, Aurora Hauke, for doing the mgjority of
work on the bill. Representative Kerttula explained that a
constituent had wanted to hire an 18-year-old who was a foster
child but technically was out of foster care because he was
considered an adult wunder that system current |aw, however,
requires a parent's signature. Thus HB 430 solves a snall
problem for 18-year-olds who want to work in a hotel or
restaurant where alcohol is served, although, of course, such a
person cannot serve, touch, or sell the alcohol. Representative
Kerttula noted that the same situation occurs for 18-year-olds
who travel to Al aska. She reported that the Al coholic Beverage
Control Board ("ABC Board") supports the legislation and that
Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD) has no opposition.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA remarked that he thinks the bill is fine,
but raises the question of whether 16- or 17-year-olds, if
[HB 367, which he and Chair MGQGuire sponsored] doesn't pass,
would be allowed to work at The [Great Al askan] Bush Conpany,
for exanple, if it serves fries. He suggested perhaps it's
i ncunbent on [him and Chair MQiire] to deal with it in the
other bill.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA deferred to Ms. Hauke.

Nunber 1004

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -41- April 6, 2004



AURCRA HAUKE, Staff to Representative Beth Kerttula, Alaska
State Legislature, sponsor, voiced her belief that this would

only apply to places that have "a certain type of license to
sell al cohol, which involves that nost of the business does not
cone from the alcohol." She said she couldn't renenber the

exact nane of the license, but it's a different category.
AN UNI DENTI FI ED MEMBER nenti oned "restaurant.”

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she believes that's right.

Furthernore, 16- and 17-year-olds still have to get perm ssion
This just covers 18-year-olds; they've reached the age of
majority but still need the signature currently, although that

m ght be inpossible for soneone from out of state or who has
been a foster child. She pointed out that 19-year-olds already
can do it on their own.

CHAI R MCGU RE asked Representative Kerttula whether she'd | ooked
at a "bypass" through the Departnment of Labor [& Wrkforce
Devel opment (DLWD)] because of the foster-child status, rather
than lowering the age limt.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said her office had worked on this a
couple of years with DLMWD and the ABC Board; because of the
"norass of statutes that are quite circular,” it was decided
that a statutory change was needed. She added, "They wanted to
do it; if they could ve, they would' ve."

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS recalled that when a snoking ordinance
passed in Anchorage, distinctions were made via the licensing
mechani sm  Miuch of the difference between a particul ar bar that
sells food and a particular restaurant that sells alcohol,
al though very simlar, was based on the age of those who could
bus tabl es. Thus there'd been a Ilot of contention. He
suggested this bill probably wouldn't inpact that situation, but
said it certainly comes to nmind.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA agreed it probably wouldn't, because 18-
year-olds can work in both sets of establishments now wth
parental permssion; all this bill does is renove that one
requi renent [of perm ssion]. She offered to check it out,
however, and provide that infornmation.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said he'd like to know later and didn't
want to hold the bill up. He nentioned a deal on the assenbly
and that it was an odd choi ce. He recalled a |ine being drawn
at age 21, but said he didn't know the details.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -42- April 6, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA pointed out that soneone nust be 21
years old in order to serve alcohol or sell it, which mght have
been the distinguishing factor.

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked whet her anyone el se wished to testify.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA noted that the ABC Board was unavail abl e
to testify but supported the | egislation.

Number 1245

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG noved |[to report HB 430 out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
zero fiscal note]. There being no objection, HB 430 was
reported fromthe House Judiciary Standing Committee.

The commttee took an at-ease from4:35 p.m to 4:40 p. m

HB 275 - VETERI NARI ANS AND ANI MALS

Number 1303

CHAI R McGUI RE announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 275, "An Act relating to veterinarians and
animals.” [Before the commttee was CSHB 275(L&C). ]

Number 1333

ELI SE HSI EH, Assistant Attorney General, Environnental Section

Cvil Dvision (Anchorage), Departnent of Law (DOL), relayed
that she has sent the commttee, via e-mail, a list of what she
termed friendly, suggested amendnents to CSHB 275(L&C).
Referring to page 1, line 6 - proposed AS 03.55.100(a) - she
suggested that the word "include" be changed to "includes".
Referring to page 1, line 8, - proposed AS 03.55.100(a)(1) - she
suggested that the word "daily" be deleted because it could [be
interpreted to mean] providing potable water once a day, which

she opined, is probably not sufficient. Referring to page 1,
lines 10-12 - proposed AS 03.55.100(a)(2) - she suggested that
t he | anguage be changed to read: "(2) shelter; indoor shelter
nmust be maintained at a tenperature conpatible with the good
health of the animal; outdoor shelter nust". She opined that
the latter change will clean up the introductory phraseol ogy [ of

paragraph (2)], characterizing the current wording as being very
awkwar d.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -43- April 6, 2004



VS. HSIEH, referring to page 2, line 9 - proposed AS
03.55.100(a)(5) - suggested adding the words "for the health and

safety of the aninmals" after "standards"; this will clarify the
standards expected from the state veterinarian. Referring to
page 2, lines 10-14 - proposed AS 03.55.100(b) - she suggested
adding a sentence, "In the event of disagreenent under this
paragraph, the State Veterinarian will provide the professiona
opi nion needed under this paragraph.”; this wll clarify that
the state veterinarian wll be the final arbiter of any
di sagreenent between veterinarians making determ nations under
par agraph (b). Referring to proposed AS 03.55.100, she

suggested adding language in a new subsection (c) giving the
Department of Environnmental Conservation (DEC) the authority to
pronul gate regulations regarding sufficiency of care under
proposed AS 03.55.100(b); the Ilanguage could read, "(c) The
departnment of environnental conservation nay adopt regulations
to inplement this section.” She noted that the latter suggested
change was recommended by Debra Behr of the Departnent of |aw.

Nunmber 1504

M5. HSIEH, referring to page 2, line 19 - proposed AS
03.55.110(a) - suggested deleting, "on which it w shes to take
action", because the discretion to enforce against aninal

abusers should be with the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)
rather than with an unnanmed, possibly private, organization that
may or may not wish to act. Referring to page 3, lines 3-4 -
proposed AS 03.55.120(b) - and noting that custodians of abused
animals may be unwilling to have their 1location known, she
suggested deleting the words, "and under whose custody the
animal is to be sheltered and cared for", and inserting instead
the words, "and a reference to their right to petition the court
under AS 03.55.130", which would be nore hel pful to owners who
seek the return of their animals.

M5. HSIEH, referring to page 3, line 10 - proposed AS
03.55.120(d) - and remarking that, "every reasonable effort",
connotes sonething that may be unending, suggested replacing
"every" with "a"; the |anguage would then read, "shall nake a

reasonable effort to |locate the owner". Referring to page 3,
line 24 - proposed AS 03.55.130(c) - she suggested, for clarity,
replacing "warranted by" wth "reasonable under"; she renarked
that the word "warranted" could, in sone circunstances, be nore
anbi guous than reference to a "reasonabl e" standard. Ref erring
to page 4, line 30 - proposed AS 11.61.138(a)(6) - she suggested
deleting the words, "a herd, <collection, or kennel J[of]",

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -44- April 6, 2004



opining that that |anguage 1is wunnecessary and conplicates
enf or cenent .

M5. HSIEH, referring to page 5 line 2 - proposed AS
11.61.138(a)(7) - suggested using |language that would be nore
specific than, "with elenents simlar to a crime under this
section". Referring to page 5, lines 4-5 - proposed AS

11.61.138(b) - and remarking that that |anguage is very awkward,
she suggested changing it to read, "Each aninmal that is subject
to cruelty to aninmals under (a)(1)-(5) and (7) of this section
shall constitute a separate offense.” In conclusion, M. Hsieh
opi ned that these suggested "friendly" anmendnents will make HB
275 stronger and easier to enforce.

CHAIR McGU RE nentioned that the commttee would address the
DOL' s suggested changes at the bill's next hearing.

Nunmber 1655

TIM COLBATH, Founder, Alaska's Extended Life Animl Sanctuary,
characterizing HB 275 as a mmjor step in the right direction,
sinply offered his organization's support for the bill

Nunmber 1687

ALLEN STOREY, Lieutenant, Central Ofice, Dvision of Al aska
State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), indicated
that the DPS is in support of HB 275, and said he agrees wth
Ms. Hsieh's points, in particular the point about it being a bad

idea to disclose to owners the location of their aninals. He
added, "I don't think it will be a burden for [law] enforcenent
officers sinply to refer people to the statute or the courts so
they can petition for return of their animals.” He noted that
| aw enforcement officers see a lot of cases of animl abuse,
addi ng, "we've seen sone ugly things.”" In response to coments,
he said he agrees that there is a significant |ink between

cruelty to animals and other crinmes of violence; |aw enforcenent
officers and teachers are trained to look for cruelty to aninmals
in juvenile behavior because such my indicate abnornal
personality traits.

Number 1759
CHRI STINE HEINTZ, after noting that she volunteers at Al aska
Equi ne Rescue (AER) and that she has taken in unwanted and

abused animals, mainly horses, on her own for over 20 years,
said sinply that she is in total support of HB 275.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -45- April 6, 2004



Number 1797

BARBARA BRINK, Director, Central Ofice, Public Defender Agency
(PDA), Departnent of Admi nistration (DOA), remarked that HB 275
proposes a huge change to current |law, and indicated that she
wanted the conmttee to be aware of the possible ramfications.
She went on to say:

My first question has to do wth the anendnent
suggest ed by [ M. Hsi eh r egar di ng] page 2,
[ subsection] (b), [lines 10-14]. Sonmehow this kind
of, I think, nuddies the water as to who makes these
determ nati ons of sufficiencies t hr ough wat er
shelter, space, et cetera because, frankly, in making
this a cl ass A m sdeneanor of f ense, t hose
determ nations are going to have to be nmade by a jury.
So perhaps we should put sonme limting |anguage in
that section - [which] limts the state veterinarian
and the veterinarians to providing opinions wth
[regard] to the sufficiency of evidence - to just
sinply engage in a prosecution.

My next concern is, | just want to enphasize [that]
currently, the law requires that a person know ngly
inflict severe physical pain or prolonged suffering on
an animal, or, with crimnal negligence, they fail to
care for aninmal and cause death, serious physical

pain, or prolonged suffering, or that they kill ... an
ani mal by wusing a deconpression chanber. So
everything in addition to that - [proposed] paragraphs
[(3)-(7)] on page 4, C [ and pr oposed AS
11.61.140(a)(1)-(4)] - ... are all things that are not
currently crimes and wll be crinmes under this new
bill.

And frankly, when we prosecute ... an assault against
a person, we require that that person either be placed
in fear of serious physical injury or that they
actually suffered a physical injury, which is any pain
or inmpairnment. And here we're providing [that] if you

recklessly fail to observe mninmum standards of care
for your pets, even if there is no injury whatsoever,
you can be prosecuted and convicted wunder this
section. So ... the broadness of this bill is rather
enornmous and, while | <can't predict with accuracy
exactly how many dollars it's going to cost the state

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -46- April 6, 2004



and in particular ny agency, | can prom se you that
this will be costly.

M5. BRINK, in response to a question, noted that proposed AS
11.61.138(a)(5) sinply says in part, "owns or is responsible for
the care of an animal and recklessly fails to provide the
m ni mum standards of care", and thus doesn't contain a damage
el enent; the behavior could have had no deleterious effect on an
ani mal and yet a person could still be prosecuted and convi ct ed.

Number 1971

SHARALYN WRI GHT, Staff to Representative M ke Chenault, Al aska
State Legislature, sponsor, suggested to M. Brink that she
contact the sponsor to discuss the PDA s concerns.

MS. BRI NK said she would do so.
Number 1984

ETHEL CHRI STENSEN, Executive Director, Al aska Society for the
Prevention of Cruelty to Animals (SPCA), relayed that she has
sent the conmttee sone witten comments, and offered her belief
that mandatory jail time should be inposed for heinous crimnes
involving animal cruelty, and that drug and nental health
counseling should be required for all other cases involving
animal cruelty. She listed exanples of <cases that she
characterized as heinous. She, too, remarked that people who
are cruel to aninmals are also cruel to people, and noted that
exanples of such were relayed to her at a conference she
attended in Seattle several years ago. In conclusion, she said
[the bill] is long over due.

CHAIR McGUJ RE thanked M. Christensen for her work with the
Al aska SPCA

Nunmber 2084

SALLY CLAMPI TT, President, Al aska Equine Rescue (AER), said she
supports HB 275. She nentioned sone of the animals the AER
currently has in protective custody, and relayed that groups
like the AER are willing to take on the expense and burden of
providing the legislature with whatever support it needs [to
pass HB 275]. She said she sees HB 275 as having many
provisions that will nake "the procedure" a whole |ot easier
efficient, and faster, and hopes that the bill wll result in

nore prosecutions. Current state law, as currently enforced, is

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -47- April 6, 2004



a green light for cruelty and abuse, she opined, adding that
cruelty to animals is "the unwanted child" of the judicial
system and takes a back seat to nany other issues. She went on
to say:

| don't believe that our organization or any other
animal welfare group subscribes to putting animals

before people. Nevertheless, to ignore the really
ugly, ugly situations that go on out there would be
very remss ... as a noral responsibility.

M5. CLAWMPITT offered to share the details of cases that have
occurred, reiterated that she supports HB 275, and urged the
commttee to make it as tough as possible. Characteri zi ng
current statutory |anguage as vague, hard to enforce, and hard
to prosecute under, she indicated that she would Iike to see the
m ni rum standards of animal care left in the bill, as well as
the new references to the behaviors that would becone crines
In conclusion she opined that HB 275 woul d get the job done, and
asked the commttee to support it.

CHAIR McGU RE, after ascertaining that no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 275 and indicated that
the bill would be held over.

ADJ OQURNVENT

Number 2251

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 5:04 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -48- April 6, 2004



